
i

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL, PENNS PLACE,
PETERSFIELD, HAMPSHIRE GU31 4EX

Telephone:  01730 266551
Website:  www.easthants.gov.uk

PLANNING COMMITTEE AGENDA

Date: Thursday, 22 June 2017

Time: 6.00 pm

Venue: Council Chamber, Penns Place, Petersfield, GU31 4EX

Membership:      Councillor I Thomas (Chairman)

Councillors R Ayer (Vice-Chairman), D Ashcroft, K Budden, K Carter, 
F Cowper, N Drew, D Evans, A Glass, M Johnson, A Joy, C Louisson, 
R Mocatta, D Orme, D Phillips, S Pond, S Schillemore and A Williams

(THE QUORUM FOR THIS MEETING IS 7 VOTING COUNCILLORS)

The business to be transacted is set out below: 

Nick Leach
Monitoring Officer

Date of Publication: Wednesday, 14 June 2017

Contact Officer: James Harris 01730 234098
Email:  james.harris@easthants.gov.uk

Working in Partnership



ii

Page Nos
1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Confirmation of Minutes  

Please note that it is helpful if Councillors could give advance notice, 
to Democratic Services, of any questions they wish to raise in respect 
of the Minutes.

Minutes of the meeting held on 1 June 2017, circulated under 
separate cover. 

3. Chairman's Announcements  

4. Declarations of Interest  

Councillors are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary interest which they may have in any item of 
business on the agenda no later than when that item is reached.  
Unless dispensation has been granted, you may not participate in any 
discussion of, or vote on, or discharge any function related to any 
matter in which you have a pecuniary interest as defined by 
regulations made by the Secretary of State under the Localism Act 
2011.  You must withdraw from the room or chamber when the 
meeting discusses and votes on the matter. 

Matters for Decision

5. Acceptance of Supplementary Matters  

6. Future Items  9 - 10

7. Report of the Head of Planning  

PART 1 - East Hampshire District Council Items

Section I

7.(i)  30936/007/FUL/JonH - Wield Yard, Yew Tree Lane, Wield, 
Alresford, SO24 9AJ  
Hattingley Valley Wines

Building to provide storage and processing space ancillary to existing 
winery (as amended by plans received 10 April 2017.

11 - 30

7.(ii)  56832/001/HSE/RV - 41 Bulls Copse Lane, Horndean, 
Waterlooville, PO8 9RA  
Retention of boundary wall (as amended by plans received 12.06.17 
omitting proposed vehicular gates)

31 - 38



iii

Section II

There are no Section II items within this agenda.

PART 2 - South Downs National Park Items

Section I

8.(i)  SDNP/17/00383/FUL - Great Oak (Premier Inn), Winchester Road, 
Petersfield, Hampshire, GU32 3BU  
Premier Inn Hotels Limited

Two storey annexe to hotel, car parking and air conditioning 
compound (amended plans and details received on 16/05/2017).

39 - 64

Section II

There are no Section II items within this agenda.



iv



v

GENERAL INFORMATION

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR 
ANY OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, 
AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 01730 234073.

Internet

This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the East 
Hampshire District Council website: www.easthants.gov.uk

Public Attendance and Participation

Members of the public are welcome to attend and observe the meetings. 
Many of the Council’s meetings allow the public to make deputations on 
matters included in the agenda. Rules govern this procedure and for further 
information please get in touch with the contact officer for this agenda. 

Disabled Access

All meeting venues have full access and facilities for the disabled.

Emergency Procedure

Please ensure that you are familiar with the location of all emergency exits 
which are clearly marked. In the unlikely event of an emergency an alarm will 
sound.

PLEASE EVACUATE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY.

DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO.

No Smoking Policy

All meeting venues operate a no smoking policy on all premises and grounds.

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/




PLANNING COMMITTEE

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. This report considers planning applications submitted to the Council, as the Local 
Planning Authority, for determination.  It may also include items which are being 
determined by the Council on behalf of the South Downs National Park Authority.

East Hampshire District Council is acting as an agent for the South Downs National 
Park Authority in accordance with an agreement signed under Section 101 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  Under this arrangement the Council can 
determine planning applications on sites within the South Downs National Park area 
of the district on behalf of the National Park Authority.  Applications for the South 
Downs National Park are prefixed with the letters SDNP. 

2.1. SECTIONS IN THE REPORT

The report is divided into two main parts; 

Part 1 – East Hampshire District Council

This part of the report considers applications and related planning matters which are 
being determined or considered by the Council as the Local Planning Authority.  

Part 2 – South Downs National Park Authority

This part of the report considers applications and related planning matters which fall 
within East Hampshire District’s area of the South Downs National Park and which 
the Council is determining or considering on behalf of the South Downs National 
Park Authority.  

Each part of the report is split into two sections:  

Section 1 - Schedule of Application Recommendations 

This Section deals with planning applications that have been received by the Council 
and which require the Planning Committee to make a decision to grant or refuse 
permission.  Each item contains a full description of the proposed development, 
details of the consultations undertaken and summary of the responses received, an 
assessment of the proposal against current policy, a commentary and concludes with 
a recommendation.  A presentation with slides will be made to Committee.  Public 
participation is allowed on Section 1 items.

Section 2 – Other matters 

This Section deals with other planning matters which are not the subject of a current 
application or are current applications which have already been determined and have 
been subject to a committee resolution to grant or refuse. No formal presentation will 
be made to Committee, unless required, and there will be no public participation.”

2.2. All information, advice, and recommendations contained in this report are 



understood to be correct at the time of publication, which is more than one week in 
advance of the Committee meeting.  Because of the time constraints, some reports 
may have been prepared in advance of the final date for consultee responses or 
neighbour comment.  Where a recommendation is either altered or substantially 
amended between preparing the report and the Committee meeting or where 
additional information has been received, a separate Supplementary Matters paper 
will be circulated at the meeting to assist Councillors.  This paper will be available to 
members of the public.

3. PLANNING POLICY

3.1. All planning applications must be determined in accordance with the development 
plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise (Section 38(6) of the Town 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).  If the development plan contains material 
policies or proposals and there are no other material considerations, the application 
should be determined in accordance with the development plan.  Where there are 
other material considerations, the development plan will be the starting point, and 
other material considerations will also be taken into account.  One such 
consideration will be whether the plan policies are relevant and up to date.  The 
relevant development plans are the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan, The East 
Hampshire District Joint Core Strategy 2014 and the saved policies in the East 
Hampshire District Local Plan: Second Review 2006. 

3.2. Although not necessarily specifically referred to in the Committee report, the relevant 
development plan will have been used as a background document and the relevant 
policies taken into account in the preparation of the  report on each item.  

3.3. The East Hampshire District Joint Core Strategy and Local Plan have policies that 
contain criteria that must be met if a particular form of development is to be allowed.  
Paragraph 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states:  “Planning 
law requires that applications for planning permission must be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.”  

3.4. The Council may sometimes decide to grant planning permission for development 
that departs from a development plan if other material considerations indicate that it 
should proceed.  One of these material considerations is whether the plan is up-to-
date in terms of housing delivery.  

4. OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

4.1. Material considerations must be genuine planning considerations, i.e. they must be 
related to the development and use of land in the public interest.  They must also 
fairly and reasonably relate to the application concerned.  The Courts are the arbiters 
of what constitutes a material consideration.  All the fundamental factors involved in 
land-use planning are included, such as the number, size, layout, siting, design, and 
external appearance of buildings and the proposed means of access, together with 
landscaping, impact on the neighbourhood, and the availability of infrastructure.  



4.2. Matters that should not be taken into account are:
 loss of property value  loss of view
 land and boundary disputes  matters covered by leases or covenants
 the impact of construction work  property maintenance issues
 need for development (save in 

certain defined circumstances)
 the identity or personal characteristics of 

the applicant
 competition between firms,  or matters that are dealt with by other 

legislation, such as the Building 
Regulations (e.g. structural safety, fire 
risks, means of escape in the event of 
fire etc). - The fact that a development 
may conflict with other legislation is not a 
reason to refuse planning permission or 
defer a decision.  It is the applicant’s 
responsibility to ensure compliance with 
all relevant legislation.

4.3. Government statements of planning policy are material considerations that must be 
taken into account in deciding planning applications.  These statements cannot make 
irrelevant any matter that is a material consideration in a particular case.  
Nevertheless, where such statements indicate the weight that should be given to 
relevant considerations, decision-makers must have proper regard to them.  

4.4. In those cases where the development plan is not relevant, for example because 
there are no relevant policies, the planning application should be determined on its 
merits in the light of all the material considerations. 

5. PLANNING CONDITIONS AND OBLIGATIONS 

5.1. The Council can impose conditions on planning permissions only where there is a 
clear land-use planning justification for doing so.  Conditions should be used in a way 
that is clearly seen to be fair, reasonable, and practicable.  One key test of whether a 
particular condition is necessary is if planning permission would have to be refused if 
the condition were not imposed.  Otherwise, such a condition would need special 
and precise justification. 

5.2. Where it is not possible to include matters that are necessary for a development to 
proceed in a planning condition the Council can agree a planning obligation under 
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  Planning obligations 
should meet the Secretary of State's policy tests.  They should be: 
 necessary;
 relevant to planning;
 directly related to the proposed development;
 fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the proposed development; and
 reasonable in all other respects.

5.3. The use of planning obligations is governed by the fundamental principle that 



planning permission may not be bought or sold.  It is therefore not legitimate for 
unacceptable development to be permitted because of benefits or inducements 
offered by a developer, which are not necessary to make the development 
acceptable in planning terms.  Planning obligations are only a material consideration 
to be taken into account when deciding whether to grant planning permission, and it 
is for the Council to decide what weight should be attached to a particular material 
consideration. 

6. PLANNING APPEALS 
Applicants have the right of appeal to the Secretary of State if an application is refused, or 
granted subject to conditions, or if it has not been determined within the specified period.  
Appeals are administered by the Planning Inspectorate - an executive agency reporting to 
the Secretary of State.  Appeals are considered by written representation, hearings, and 
public inquiries.  In planning appeals, it is normally expected that both parties will pay their 
own costs.  Costs can however, be awarded against the Council where it:

(a) fails to determine a planning application in good time – the Council must have good 
planning reasons to explain and justify why it did not make a decision in time.

(b) fails to carry out adequate prior investigation consistent with national policy and 
guidance.

(c) prevents or delays development that should clearly be permitted having regard to 
the development plan, national policy statements and any other material 
considerations.  It is the Councils responsibility to produce evidence to show 
clearly, why the development cannot be permitted. Reasons for refusal must be

 complete, 
 precise, 
 specific
 relevant to the application, and
 supported by substantiated evidence. 

(d) fails to show reasonable planning grounds for taking a decision contrary to officer 
advice 

(e) gives too much weight to neighbour objections - the extent of local opposition is not, 
in itself, a reasonable ground for resisting development. To carry significant weight, 
opposition should be founded on valid planning reasons that is supported by 
substantial evidence.

(f) relies on unsubstantiated objections where they include valid reasons for refusal 
but rely almost exclusively on local opposition from third parties, through 
representations and attendance at an inquiry or hearing, to support the decision.

(g) fails to show that it has considered the possibility of imposing relevant planning 
conditions to allow development to proceed.

The following are examples given in Planning Practice Guidance of circumstances that 
may lead to an award of costs against the Council:
(a) ignoring relevant national policy – for example, the advice in NPPF,
(b) where a proposal is contrary to the development plan but the relevant policy has 

been superseded by national policy which advocates an entirely different approach. 
An example might be ignoring national advice in paragraph 54 of NPPF which may 
allow some market housing to bring forward a rural affordable housing exception 
site,



(c) acting contrary to, or not following, well-established case law,
(d) persisting in objections to a scheme, or part of a scheme, which has already been 

granted planning permission or which the Secretary of State or an Inspector has 
previously indicated to be acceptable,

(e) not determining like cases in a like manner – for example, imposing an additional 
reason for refusal on a similar scheme to one previously considered by the 
planning authority where circumstances have not materially changed,

(f) failing to grant a further planning permission for a scheme the subject of an extant 
or recently expired permission where there has been no material change in 
circumstances,

(g) refusing to approve reserved matters when the objections relate to issues that 
should already have been considered at the outline stage,

(h) imposing a condition that is not necessary, precise, enforceable, relevant to 
planning, relevant to the development permitted or reasonable and thereby does 
not comply with the advice in the Planning Practice Guidance on the use of 
conditions in planning permissions,

(i) requiring the appellant to enter into or complete a planning obligation which does 
not accord with the tests in para 204 of the NPPF, or

(j) not imposing conditions on a grant of planning permission where conditions could 
effectively have overcome the objection identified – for example, in relation to 
highway matters.

7. THE SECRETARY OF STATE'S ROLE

7.1 The Secretary of State has reserve powers to direct the council to refer an 
application to him/her for decision. This is what is meant by a 'called-in' application. 
In general, this power of intervention is used selectively and the Secretary of State 
will not interfere with the jurisdiction of local planning authorities unless it is 
necessary to do so.  The Planning Practice Guidance sets out the type of 
development proposals that directs local authorities to consult with the Secretary of 
State before granting planning permission.

8. PROPRIETY

8.1 Councillors are elected to represent the interests of the whole community in 
planning matters and not simply their individual Wards.  When determining planning 
applications they must take into account planning considerations only.  This can 
include views expressed on relevant planning matters.  Local opposition or support 
for a proposal is not in itself a ground for refusing or granting planning permission, 
unless it is founded upon valid planning reasons. 

9. PRIVATE INTERESTS 

9.1 The planning system does not exist to protect the private interests of one person 
against the activities of another, although private interests may coincide with the 
public interest in some cases.  It can be difficult to distinguish between public and 
private interests, but this may be necessary on occasion.  The basic question is not 
whether owners and occupiers of neighbouring properties would experience financial 
or other loss from a particular development, but whether the proposal would 



unacceptably affect amenities and the existing use of land and buildings that ought 
to be protected in the public interest. Covenants or the maintenance/protection of 
private property are therefore not material planning consideration.

10.OTHER LEGISLATION 

10.1 Non-planning legislation may place statutory requirements on planning authorities, or 
may set out controls that need to be taken into account (for example, environmental 
legislation, or water resources legislation).  The Council, in exercising its functions, 
also must have regard to the general requirements of other legislation, in particular: 

 The Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000, which prevents discrimination 
directly or indirectly in any functions, carried out by public authorities. 

 The Equality Act 2010, which places a duty on all those responsible for 
providing a service to the public not to discriminate against disabled people by 
providing a lower standard of service. 

 The Human Rights Act 1998, which incorporated provisions of the European 
Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) into UK law.  The general purpose of the 
ECHR is to protect human rights and fundamental freedoms and to maintain 
and promote the ideals and values of a democratic society.  It sets out the basic 
rights of every person together with the limitations placed on these rights in 
order to protect the rights of others and of the wider community.  The specific 
Articles of the ECHR relevant to planning include Article 6 (Right to a fair and 
public hearing), Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life, home and 
correspondence), Article 14 (Prohibition of discrimination) and Article 1 of 
Protocol 1 (Right to peaceful enjoyment of possessions and protection of 
property).  All planning applications are assessed to make sure that the 
subsequent determination of the development proposal is compatible with the 
Act.  If there is a potential conflict, this will be highlighted in the report on the 
relevant item.

11.PUBLIC SPEAKING

11.1 The Council has adopted a scheme for the public to speak on all Section 1 items. 
Where public speaking is allowed, the applicant or their representative, the local 
Parish/Town Council, and one objector may address the Committee, for a maximum 
of three minutes each, by prior invitation.  Members of the public wishing to speak 
must have contacted the Meeting Administrator in Democratic Services at least 48 
hours before the meeting.  It is not possible to arrange to speak to the Committee at 
the Committee meeting itself.

11.2 For probity reasons associated with advance disclosure of information under the 
Access to Information Act, neither the applicant, Parish Council, nor an objector will 
be allowed to circulate, show or display further material at, or just before, the 
Committee meeting.  

12. INSPECTION OF DRAWINGS

12.1 All drawings are available for inspection on the internet at www.easthants.gov.uk and 
at the Planning Development Reception area during our normal office hours.  The 

http://www.easthats.gov.uk/


files and drawings will also be available 30 minutes prior to the start of meeting for 
Councillors to inspect.

13.FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

13.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  However, in the 
event of an appeal, further resources will be put towards defending the Council’s 
decision.  Rarely and in certain circumstances, decisions on planning applications 
may result in the Council facing an application for costs arising from a planning 
appeal.  Officers will aim to alert Members where this may be likely and provide 
appropriate advice in such circumstances.

Simon Jenkins
Head of Planning 

Background Papers:

 the individual planning application file (reference quoted in each case)
 the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013
 East Hampshire Joint Core Strategy 2014
 East Hampshire District Local Plan: Second Review 2006 - Saved Policies
 Government advice and guidance contained in circulars, National Planning Policy 

Framework, Planning Practice Guidance and ministerial statements
 any other document specifically referred to in the report.





PLANNING COMMITTEE

PS.486/2017
22 June 2017

POSSIBLE FUTURE ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE / SITE VISIT

The following items are for INFORMATION purposes only.  They comprise major 
applications that have either been submitted some time ago but are still not yet ready for 
consideration or are recently received applications that are not ready to be considered by 
the Committee or determined under the Scheme of Delegation.  The purpose of this report 
is to highlight the receipt of these applications to ensure that any issues that they raise are 
highlighted at an early stage.  Councillors may also suggest possible future site visits 
under this item.

Reference Description and Address
1

20583/030 Redevelopment of the site to provide a new 73 bed hotel 
and leisure facilities, erection of 14 holiday lodges and a 
holiday cottage surrounding the lake, together with car 
parking and associated works.

Headley Park Hotel, Picketts Hill, Headley, Bordon, 
GU35 8TE

This application has only just recently been submitted 
and consultations and notifications are under way.  It is 
too early to make any decision as to how this application 
will be determined.

2
SDNP/17/02581/FUL Alterations & refurbishment works including a two storey 

infill extension and installation of associated new plant 
equipment.

Taro Leisure Centre, Penns Place, Petersfield, 
Hampshire, GU31 4EP

The South Downs National Park Authority has directed 
that this application will be dealt with by that Authority.  It 
has been included in this section for information only.







PART 1

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE
REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING

Applications to be determined by the
Council as the Local Planning Authority

PS.486/2017
22 June 2017

SECTION 1 – SCHEDULE OF APPLICATION RECOMMENDATIONS 

  
Item No.:01

The information, recommendations, and advice contained in this report are correct as at the 
date of preparation, which is more than one week in advance of the Committee meeting. 
Because of the time constraints some reports may have been prepared in advance of the final 
date given for consultee responses or neighbour comments.  Any changes or necessary 
updates to the report will be made orally at the Committee meeting.

PROPOSAL Building to provide storage and processing space ancillary to existing 
winery (as amended by plans received 10 April 2017)

LOCATION: Wield Yard, Yew Tree Lane, Wield, Alresford, SO24 9AJ

REFERENCE : 30936/007 PARISH:Wield

APPLICANT:  Hattingley Valley Wines

CONSULTATION EXPIRY : 05 May 2017

APPLICATION EXPIRY : 02 December 2016

COUNCILLOR: Cllr T Costigan
SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION

This application is included on the agenda at the discretion of the Head of Planning



Site and Development

Hattingley Valley Wines occupies a range of former commercial units at Lower Wield, 
approximately 4km north of Medstead in a rural location, outside of any established 
settlement policy boundary.  The site lies to the south-west of the main winery buildings and 
comprises a flat area of grass, enclosed by woodland to the south-east and south-west. The 
existing buildings and a private dwelling 'Drove Cottage' enclose the site to the north-east and 
a combination of a private dwelling, 'Brooder House', a pair of commercial buildings and trees 
enclose the site to the north-western side of the site. 

The buildings at Hattingley Valley Wines comprise a large portion of the small cluster of 
buildings at the southern end of Lower Wield, with the remainder of the hamlet to the north. 
Upper Wield lies approximately 1km to the south. The surrounding area is characterised by 
large fields with gently undulating topography. The roads in the area are generally single 
width lanes with passing places. 

Following receipt of revised plans, the application proposes the erection of a storage building 
and processing area for wine with a floor area of 1,770sq metres. The building would be 33m 
in width, 56m in depth, with a ridge height of 6.6m. The front elevation would be faced in 
timber boarding with the sides and rear faced with a metal cladding. The building is proposed 
to be positioned approximately 50m to the rear of the existing buildings with vehicular access 
through the existing yard. The area between the existing and proposed buildings would be 
covered by an area of hardstanding for access/turning with landscape planting, which would 
continue to the sides and rear of the building. 

Relevant Planning History

30936/006 Extension and alteration of light industrial units and construction of agricultural 
building including a winery - Permission, 18/03/2009

Development Plan Policies and Proposals

East Hampshire District Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy (2014)

CP1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
CP2 - Spatial Strategy
CP5 - Employment and workforce skills
CP6 - Rural economy and enterprise
CP19 - Development in the countryside
CP20 - Landscape
CP21 - Biodiversity
CP25 - Flood Risk
CP27 - Pollution
CP29 - Design
CP31 - Transport

East Hampshire District Local Plan: Second Review (2006)

IB3 - Industrial or Business Development in the Countryside



Planning Policy Constraints and Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

In this instance the following sections of the NPPF are considered to be particularly relevant 
to the consideration of the development;

Core planning principles: Paragraph 17: Good amenity for all.

Section 1 – Building a strong, competitive economy.
Section 3 – Supporting a prosperous rural economy.
Section 4 – Promoting sustainable transport.
Section 7 – Requiring good design.
Section 11 – Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

Consultations and Town/Parish Council comments

EHDC Landscape Officer - The revised plan is an improvement on the original proposal – a 
condition is recommended for planting details to be submitted.

EHDC Drainage Officer - No objection subject to condition.

EHDC Planning Policy Team - The proposal will support the continued operation of an 
established rural business, which is supported by the NPPF. Policy CP6 of the JCS and 
saved policy IB3 support the reasonable extension of firms in the countryside. What is 
considered a reasonable extension needs to be considered on the merits of the case as part 
of the planning balance.

EHDC Environmental Health, Pollution - No objection subject to conditions concerning hours 
of use and lighting.

HCC Highways Officer - The additional highway information submitted clarifies the impact of 
the proposal on the surrounding highway network, which confirms that whilst the winery is 
seeking to expand operations on the site, the proposed storage building will allow the 
business to be consolidated at Wield Yard. Despite the growth in production, the provision of 
on-site storage is forecast to lead to a net decrease in vehicle movements attending the site. 
It is also acknowledged that should production increase without the on-site storage, there 
would likely be an increase in trips to off-site storage facilities. 

It is noted that additional vehicles will attend the site as a result of increased production, 
however, this falls outside the scope of this application. The proposal would reduce the 
number of vehicle movements between the site and off-site storage provision and 
subsequently there is no objection. 

Wield Parish Council - Initial comments - 

A well-attended Extraordinary Meeting of Wield Parish Council convened to discuss this 
Planning Application was held during which there was:

· General support and appreciation for the Winery and its positive effect on the village;



· Strongly voiced objection to the planning application (in particular to proposed building size 
and scale) from three residents (drawing support from others) who would be most 
immediately affected;

· Wide ranging comment (including additional objections and concerns) raised by a number of 
other parishioners.  

Regarding this Planning Application, the PC has reflected discussions during the meeting in 
making on behalf of the residents of Wield (Upper & Lower Wield) the following comments to 
EHDC Planning Department: 

Objections:

a. Size & Scale of proposed storage building.  The principal and major objection relates to the 
enormous size and scale of the building which will dominate its surroundings: it is believed 
that it could be seen from some considerable distance on village approach roads. Whilst only 
three immediate neighbours would be directly affected (amenity - proximity issues), the 
indirect impact is likely to alter the character of Lower Wield.

b. Impact of Traffic on local access roads. Despite the stated reduction in delivery cycles, it is 
widely believed that there will be an inevitable increase in traffic and consequent impact on 
already inadequate, narrow, sunken, poorly maintained unclassified access roads which even 
with current loading rapidly degrade and deteriorate. (Road traffic movement calculations 
should be revisited.)

c. Impact of Noise.  Despite some consideration being given regarding noise control, the 
measures proposed are currently inadequate. Stricter and enforceable noise control 
measures are required, particularly during unsocial hours. 

d. Impact of Artificial Lighting.  The impact of external lighting (in particular 24 hr security 
lighting) will fundamentally alter the character of the area’s peaceful and unlit woodland 
setting and impact on wildlife.

Concerns:

a. Environmental Issues: The main issue concerns disposal of rain water. With the very large 
roof surface area of the proposed building, more consideration needs to be given to water 
run-off and associated drainage requirements. There is also concern regarding the Impact on 
wildlife of this very large structure with attendant light and noise.

b. Operational Working Hours: Strict and enforceable “unsocial hours” working hour 
parameters will be required.

c. CCTV:  The Council is concerned that unless strictly controlled and supervised, the use of 
any external CCTV (as part of the building security measures) may intrude into the privacy of 
immediate neighbours.

d. Land Change of Use: There is concern regarding a potential “change of use” issue. The 
current site (green field site, mainly used for animal grazing) would appear to be agricultural 
land, but future use will be “industrial - agricultural related”. It is not clear if change of use has 
been requested (or indeed is needed): clarification is required. 



e. Legacy Issues:  The Council is concerned that if granted permission to build, the applicant 
could of course construct, use and subsequently vacate the site, leaving a huge building with 
industrial use potential, possibly not agricultural related. The Parish Council would be grateful 
to know if there is any mechanism to protect the village’s interest in this regard.

f. Section 106:  There is no reference in the application to a payment under the Section 106 
clause: such a contribution could be put to very good Village use in upgrading immediate 
access roads to include e.g. pull-in pass points. EHDC is requested to pursue this on behalf 
of Wield PC.

Comments in response to amended plans

The Parish Council is broadly content with the revised application. Our comments are as 
follows:

a. We welcome the compromise regarding scale/size in the form of a 33% reduction in 
footprint. This does not however satisfy some residents who seek a further reduction.) We 
also note the improvement in the scope of proposed landscaping/building "softening" although 
we believe that more could be achieved (see comments below).

b. Transport movements: Clarification of the figures is helpful, although despite illumination 
the claimed reduction in transport movements is still disputed by some.

c. We recommend that landscaping and screening along the SE side of the extension building 
is included, similar to that proposed to the NW side. We believe that such screening would be 
welcome, the effect being to reduce the visual impact close proximity neighbour to the SE and 
on walkers using the nearby busy Upper-Lower Wield footpath.

d. A number of subordinate but important points (including inter alia: noise, light and 
environmental factors) made by the PC in its last response dated 3 November 2016 have not 
been addressed.

e. Although we understand that a Section 106 payment is not a mandatory requirement for 
this type of application, the PC requests that the applicant is invited to consider making a 
contribution to a small Section 106-like project, that is the upgrading to an all-weather 
standard of two vehicle passing places on the Winery approach road from the SE leading past 
the pub. This would be well received in the village.

Representations

54 representations received.

40 letters of objection and 2 letters commenting on the application have been received raising 
the following issues/concerns:

a) The scale of the building is still vast and out of keeping with a small rural hamlet;
b) the proposal would result in unacceptable increase in traffic, particularly lorries;
c) the local roads are narrow and unsuitable for the additional traffic;
d) the applicants have outgrown their site and should not impose such a large building in this 

rural area;



e) There would be no economic benefit to the village;
f) There would be no environmental benefit;
g) There are no details about lighting;
h) The proposal would result in drainage issues;
i) The building would spoil views of a field from a footpath;
j) There are no details about noise implications;
k) The revised plans do not go far enough to address the above concerns;
l) The noise, light and activity will cause harm to adjoining property;
m) The expansion would not just be for the applicant but other vineyards that the applicant 

processes for;
n) CCTV would lead to loss of privacy to neighbouring property

The 12 letters in support of the application state:

a) The applicant employs 14 people from the area and this is particularly important for young 
people;

b) This is a working landscape and storage of wine is just as necessary as facilities for grain, 
sheep or dairy farming;

c) The proposal will reduce traffic;
d) The previous users of the site generated far more traffic than is currently the case;
e) This is the type of business that builds resilience into the farming economy and is 

neccessary for the rural economy;

Determining Issues

1. Principle of development
2. Business development in the countryside
3. Impact on the character and appearance of the area
4. Impact on the amenity of adjoining property
5. Highway implications
6. Drainage

Planning Considerations 

1. Principle of development

The site is located outside the Settlement Policy Boundaries, thus falls within an area where 
the Countryside Policies of the Development Plan apply. Policy CP19 of the East Hampshire 
District Local Plan Joint Core Strategy (JCS) states that the approach to sustainable 
development in rural areas is to operate a policy of general restraint in order to protect the 
countryside for its own sake. It adds that the only development allowed in the countryside will 
be that with a genuine need for a countryside location such as farming, forestry or other rural 
enterprises. The processing of wine is not classed as agriculture, but it clearly relates to the 
growing of grapes which is. The proposal relates to the expansion of an existing rural 
enterprise, therefore it is considered that there is no conflict in principle with policy CP19.  



2. Business development in the countryside

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is a material consideration in the 
determination of planning applications and it sets out that the purpose of the planning system 
is to contribute to the achievement of sustainable development. Paragraph 7 of the NPPF 
sets out that there are three dimensions to sustainable development: economic, social and 
environmental, which are mutually dependent. 

Relevant sections of the NPPF will be referred to in the following report, but in respect of 
economic development and the rural economy, it states at paragraph 19 that significant 
weight should be placed on the need to support economic growth. Paragraph 28 is 
specifically concerned with the rural economy and advocates support for economic growth to 
create jobs and prosperity whilst local plans should support the sustainable growth and 
expansion of all types of business and enterprise in rural areas and promote the development 
of agricultural and other land based rural businesses.

Policy CP6 of the JCS is a key policy consideration as it deals with the rural economy. Criteria 
(c) provides for the 'reasonable extension of existing firms in the countryside' and the 
supporting text to the policy adds that rural businesses make an important contribution to the 
economy of the District. Saved policy IB3 of the East Hampshire District Local Plan: Second 
Review similarly provides for the reasonable expansion or intensification of an established 
rural business, provided it would not: a) result in over-intensification of the site; b) harm the 
character or appearance of the area; c) generate inappropriate traffic for the rural roads; d) 
harm the amenity of adjoining residents and e) lead to excessive use of the car. There is no 
definition of what 'reasonable expansion' may be and each case should be assessed in light 
of its own circumstances, taking account all relevant criteria. 

The supporting text to policy CP6 also sets out the stratgic approach to the rural economy, 
which is to retain and enhance established and new businesses, subject to their being 
consistent in scale and impact on their location. There is specific reference to developing and 
promoting rural enterprises that are associated with agriculture, particularly those developing 
land based products in developing markets. 

Hattingley Vale Wines has been established at the site since 2010 following the grant of 
planning permission in 2009 for the conversion and alteration of the light industrial units at the 
site (30936/006). The applicant advises that they are an estate winery (under the Hattingley 
Vale label) and is also a contract wine making facility, processing grapes for other vineyards 
to specification. Hattingley Vale produces sparking wine and its vineyards are located 
approximately 4km from the site. The applicant states that there is currently capacity to 
process approximately 450 tonnes of grapes (385,000 bottles) with growth of the business 
(additional and maturing vineyards) to allow for 650 tonnes (500,000 bottles) by 2020. The 
applicant states that the enterprise, in-line with the UK wine industry as a whole, is expanding 
and due to lack of storage space, currently stores bottled wine off-site. 

The applicant advises that wine is processed and bottled on site then leaves the site for 
storage elsewhere, is then returned to the site for processing (riddling and disgorging) and 
subsequently taken back off-site for storage before packing and sending to distributors. This 
has cost implications, transport issues (which will be addressed further below) and quality 
implications. 



The applicant proposes the storage building in order to overcome existing logistical issues 
and to consolidate its premises and operations with the planned growth of the enterprise. The 
building would be primarily to provide for storage space currently met off-site with an area 
within the building for the riddling and disgorging processes. All other wine processing would 
continue to take place within the existing buildings, so the planned increase in production 
would continue regardless of the proposal.

The applicant states that they currently employ 12 full time staff, 6 part time and 8 full time 
equivalent during the harvest. There are also 3.5 full time vineyard staff. It is stated that the 
growth of the business to 2020 referred to above, would generate the need for 10 additional 
full time staff. Whilst this growth in employment and wine production is not predicated on the 
basis of the proposed storage building, it is reasonable to conclude that the facility is in line 
with the needs of the enterprise as it develops production and consolidates its base. 

There were concerns with the scale of the building as originally proposed as it was 
considered dominant in relation to the existing buildings and aside from landscape issues, 
(which are assessed below) it was considered to exceed what is regarded as a 'reasonable 
expansion' of a rural enterprise as set out in policy CP6 of the JCS. Following discussions 
with the applicant, the proposal has been reduced by 33% in floor area (from 2,638sqm to 
1,770sqm) and whilst the building is still large relative to existing buildings, it is now 
considered proportionate to them and having regard to the proposed use of the building, it is 
now considered to be an acceptable expansion and compliant with policy CP6 of the JCS and 
policy IB3 of the East Hampshire District Local Plan: Second Review. The economic benefits 
of the proposal carry weight in favour of the scheme and the proposal is considered to be 
consistent with the NPPF in terms of support for land based rural enterprises. However, in 
order for the proposal to be considered 'sustainable development' in line with the NPPF, the 
economic benefits must not be outweighed by social or environmental considerations and 
these are now assessed under the following headings.

3. Impact on the character and appearance of the area

Policy CP20 of the JCS states that development proposals must conserve or enhance the 
landscape of the District, including natural and historic features that contribute to the 
distinctive character of the area. Proposals should also incorporate appropriate new planting 
to enhance the landscape setting of the new development. The NPPF (paragraph 109) states 
the planning decisions should protect and enhance valued landscapes and (paragraph 125) 
states that decisions should limit the impact of light pollution on local amenity, intrinsically 
dark landscapes and nature conservation.

The site is within an area defined by the East Hampshire District Landscape Character 
Assessment as part of the 'Four Marks Clay Plateau', which is characterised by agricultural 
fields with some woodland and connected by a pattern of hedgerows. Development in the 
area is very sparse and Lower Wield itself is a small hamlet comprising approximately 30 
dwellings dispersed to the north and east of the site. The landscape is generally undulating 
and open, but the site itself is enclosed by trees/woodland and existing development and so 
not visible from vantage points in the wider area. The site adjoins a public footpath that runs 
roughly north south to the east of the site although there are trees and understorey planting 
between the footpath and the site that obscure views from the footpath. 



The site would be visible from the access with the road, however the building would be seen 
in context with other buildings and would not appear as a prominent feature as it would be 
partially screened by the buildings and trees at the entrance. The design of the proposed front 
elevation incorporates arches to reflect those on the existing buildings and the use of timber 
boarding creates a good quality design in keeping with the yard complex. Landscaping is also 
proposed to assist in integrating the impact of the building within the landscape.

Having regard to the limited visual impacts of the proposal, it is considered the proposal 
would not result in unacceptable visual harm to the area, however, visual impact is not the 
only assessment of landscape impact and consideration must also be given to the impact of 
the proposal on the defining characteristics of the area. Development in the wider landscape 
is very limited, but there are examples of larger, agricultural buildings within the area and they 
are intrinsic elements of the rural landscape. The buildings at Lower Wield are fairly widely 
dispersed, such that they are not in a clear nucleated centre. It is though considered 
appropriate that any development is grouped with existing buildings to minimise the risk of 
development spreading into the countryside. In this regard, the proposal would be in close 
proximity to both the buildings at Hattingley Valley Wines and also the commercial units to the 
south. The enclosed nature of the site has the effect of containing the building so that the 
proposal would not be a harmful component of the open and generally undeveloped 
characteristics of the area. 

Impact on the setting of a public footpath

The site is visible from a section of public footpath that runs parallel with the site for 
approximately 150m. There are, however, trees and understorey vegetation alongside the 
footpath that largely obscure views of the site particularly during the summer months. During 
the winter months, there would be increased glimpsed views of the building, however, the 
building would not be a prominently distracting feature and would, in part, obscure views of 
existing buildings and be seen in context with them. There is also a treed backdrop so the 
building would not be exposed in views against the sky. Noting that agricultural buildings are 
an element of a rural landscape, it is considered the proposal would be seen (glimpsed) in 
this context and would not be harmful to the setting of the public footpath. 

Design

The design of the building is simple and functional to maximise the storage capacity of the 
building. Whilst the sides and rear of the building would be faced in metal sheets, which 
reinforces a utilitarian appearance, this is comparable to the commercial buildings that adjoin 
the site and large agricultural buildings in the area. The design of the more prominent front 
elevation has been handled more sensitively to reflect existing buildings and improve this 
aspect of the building. Whilst the scale of the building is large, (although it is noted the ridge 
height would be lower than the existing buildings) having regard to the setting of the building 
and the contained nature of the site, the design is considered to accord with policy CP29 of 
the JCS. 

The Council's Landscape Officer notes that the scale of the building has been reduced, which 
addressed initial concerns over the scale of the originally proposed building and raises no 
objection. 



The applicant has provided indicative landscaping details, however, it is considered 
necessary to secure full planting details by condition to soften the appearance and profile of 
the building, including the eastern side which faces towards the public footpath. This would be 
expected to include some mature planting to provide a more immediate screening affect. 
Subject to which, the proposal is considered to accord with policy CP20 of the JCS. 

4. Impact on the amenity of adjoining property

Policy CP27 of the JCS states that proposals must not result in unacceptable loss of amenity 
by reason of over shadowing or loss of privacy and one of the core principles of the NPPF set 
out in paragraph 17 states that development provides for a good level of amenity for all. There 
are two dwellings that adjoin the site, the Brooder House and Drove Cottage.

The revised plan positions the building approximately 38m from the Brooder House and 
approximately 95m from the rear of Drove Cottage. A hedgerow forms the boundary of Drove 
Cottage with the site and whilst the proposed building would be visible, particularly from first 
floor windows of Drove Cottage, the proposal would not result in over shadowing of that 
property. Having regard to the separation distance, it is considered that the proposal would 
not result in a sense of enclosure to Drove Cottage and whilst the appearance of the building 
may detract from views from the property, the views are private and therefore not a material 
consideration. Similarly, the distance from the proposed yard area to the front of the building 
is such that any noise implications would be acceptable.

Brooder House is closer to the site and would be the most effected property. There were 
concerns with the initial proposal as it proposed the building to be positioned approximately 
15m from the Brooder House, which would have resulted in a dominating flank wall and a 
significant change in outlook for that property. The revised plans now provide a separation 
distance of 38m and although the proposed building would be a visually prominent feature in 
relative close proximity to the Brooder House, the gap enables light and landscaping to 
mitigate the visual impact to an acceptable degree. The applicant's have proposed the 
building with a separation distance between it and the existing buildings so as to provide a 
turning space, but also so that the building would not be to the immediate front of the Brooder 
House. The ridge height of the proposed building, 6.7m, is lower than a typical two storey 
dwelling and noting the separation distance, it is considered the proposal would not have an 
unacceptable impact in terms of over shadowing. Loss of amenity therefore centres on noise 
and general activity to the front of the building. 

As the building is proposed for storage, the applicant advises that there would be a minimal 
level of activity associated with its use. Wines that are stored would be left for two to three 
years with only the processes of riddling and disgorging taking place, so minimal attention is 
needed once they are placed into storage. There would clearly be some activity with loading 
and unloading of bottles, that has potential to lead to noise disturbance that would affect 
amenity levels. However, the extent of any harm is considered acceptable and it is noted that 
the Environmental Health Officer raises no objection, subject to conditions in respect of hours 
of use. Concerns received regarding loss of privacy from CCTV are noted, as are concerns in 
respect of external lighting and the applicant is not proposing either, however conditions in 
respect of both are proposed. Subject to these conditions, the proposal is considered to 
accord with policy CP27. 



5. Highway implications

The highway implications of the proposal have generated the focus of interest in the 
representations received. Policy CP31 of the JCS states that new development should be 
located and designed to reduce the need to travel and that development that is likely to 
generate a significant number of additional vehicular movements will normally be expected to 
be located near existing centres and supportive infrastructure. The NPPF states (paragraph 
32) that development should only be refused on transport grounds where the residual 
cumulative impacts of development are severe.

The applicant has been keen to stress that a key reason for the building is to reduce transport 
movements by having its storage facilities on site. It is though clear from the representations 
received, that the issue is a primary area of concern for objectors. 

As mentioned above, current levels of wine production is approximately 385,000 bottles a 
year and is projected to increase to approximately 500,000 bottles a year by 2020. It should 
be highlighted, however, that production levels are not impacted on by storage. Currently, 
grapes are delivered to the site at harvest time, where they are processed and then bottled 
and taken off-site to storage, primarily at Grove Farm, approximately 5km by road to the 
south. Wine is then aged off-site and returned to the site at Wield Yard where it undergoes 
the riddling/disgorging process and labelled/boxed. It is then returned to the off-site storage 
before returning to Wield Yard for sale and distribution. The applicant states that a significant 
amount of the transportation to and from storage is by articulated lorries as they can carry 
more bottles and thus reduce movements. 

With the storage building at the site, the vehicular movements associated with the off-site 
storage would be removed from the process. Without the storage facility on-site, the applicant 
states that the number of vehicle movements would increase in-line with the increased 
production levels. Whilst the increased production levels would likely result in increased 
movements from increased harvests and associated increase in ancillary deliveries (more 
bottles, yeast, sugar, packaging equipment etc), it should again be noted that these increased 
movements would occur regardless of the location of storage facilities. At current production 
levels, the applicant has provided a calculation of the vehicle movements associated with the 
off-site storage to be approximately 224 movements per year (mostly articulated lorry). With 
the anticipated increase in production levels, this number would rise to 323. With storage 
facilities on-site, the number of movements associated with storage drops to zero. 

Noting that any increase in vehicle movements associated with increased production levels is 
anticipated to happen regardless of the proposed building, there is no control over these 
movements and these increased movements would, in any event, be off-set by the removal of 
movements associated with off-site storage. 

The Highways Officer's comments concurs with the above assessment, noting that the 
proposal would consolidate activity at the site and reduce vehicle movements associated with 
off-site storage. Whilst the Highways Officer acknowledges that there would likely be an 
increase in vehicle movements associated with the increased levels of production, this falls 
outside the scope of the application proposal as production levels would increase regardless 
of the storage facilities.



It is, therefore, concluded that the proposal would not result in increased traffic, particularly 
lorry movements and would remove a significant number of movements. The proposal would 
not result in a severe impact on the highway and thus accords with the NPPF. 

Some concerns have been received in respect of the potential future use of the building and 
that alternative uses could generate increased traffic in a rural location. It is agreed that the 
location is unsuitable for general storage and distribution use (the remote location indicates 
that the risk of this would be low for precisely the reason that the remote location makes it 
unsuitable for such uses), nevertheless, it is considered appropriate to restrict the use of the 
building by condition and to limit the use of the building as set out in the submitted plans. 

6. Drainage

The site is located in Flood Zone 1 (low risk of flooding), however, the proposal would result in 
a large area of hard surfacing and policy CP25 requires that development does not increase 
the risk of flooding elsewhere. The applicant proposes surface water to be controlled on site 
via soakaway and the Council's Drainage Consultant raises no objection in principle to this, 
but recommends a condition to secure full drainage details to ensure the designed soakaways 
are appropriate. A condition in this regard is duly recommended below and subject to which, 
the proposal would not be in conflict with policy CP25 of the JCS. 

Response to Parish/Town Council Comments

The Parish Council raised a number of strong objections to the initial proposal, but in 
response to the revised scheme, the Parish Council comment that they are broadly content 
with the proposal, but make a number of comments in respect of landscaping, traffic, noise, 
light and environmental factors and the possibility of a Section 106 legal agreement. The 
need for full landscaping details is noted in the above report and a condition to secure this is 
recommended. It is acknowledged that some local residents remain sceptical or dispute the 
claimed reduction in vehicle movements, however, for the reasons set out above, the 
proposal is considered acceptable in this regard. The reference to a S106 agreement to 
secure a contribution to upgrade vehicle passing places near the site are noted, however, 
such a contribution would not accord with regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure 
Levy regulations, which requires an obligation to 'be necessary to make the development 
acceptable in planning terms.' 

Conclusion

The application raises issues regarding the expansion of a rural business and the impacts on 
local amenity and the local environment. The application proposes a large storage building to 
rationalise the operations of the winery and in so doing, the applicant states the proposal 
would remove a number of vehicle movements that currently take place between the site and 
current storage facilities. The scale of the building tests what is considered a 'reasonable 
expansion' of existing firms in the countryside and as noted in the comments from the 
Planning Policy Team, the interpretation of this should be assessed on the merits of each 
case as part of the planning balance.



The context of the site, i.e. the trees and buildings that surround it, is such that the proposal 
would have a minimal visual impact on the landscape and any views from the road or the 
public footpath would be limited to glimpsed views that could be further mitigated by additional 
landscaping. For the reasons set out above, the proposal is considered to remove vehicle 
movements associated with the storage side of the enterprise and it should be highlighted 
that any increase in traffic associated with the increased production levels is outside the 
scope of this application as that is anticipated to happen regardless of the proposed storage 
building. The Highways Officer is satisfied with the proposal and it is concluded that the 
proposal would reduce impacts of traffic on the local highway. Concerns over the amenity of 
adjoining property are noted, but considered acceptable, subject to appropriate conditions. 

In view of the absence of any matters of overriding harm, the proposal is considered an 
acceptable extension to an existing rural business that amounts to sustainable development 
as defined by the NPPF. Rural businesses are an important part of the District's economy and 
the proposal would consolidate the logistics and growth of this business, which links 
agriculture and land based products in a developing market. The retention and support of 
such a rural enterprise is consistent with the strategic approach to the rural economy set out 
in policy CP6 of the JCS and the benefits of employment, skills and a diversified rural 
economy are significant factors in support of the scheme. For these reasons the proposal is 
considered to be in compliance with the policies of the Development Plan.

RECOMMENDATION 

PERMISSION, subject to the following conditions:

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this planning permission.
Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990

2 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development)(England) Order 2015, or any Order 
revoking and / or re-enacting that Order with or without modification, the 
building hereby permitted shall only be used for the storage and riddling 
and disgorging processes of wines produced at the existing complex 
(currently Hattingley Valley Wines) and for no other purpose.
Reason - In granting planning permission, particular regard is made to the 
circumstances of the business and any other use may generate harmful 
impacts on the amenity of adjoining residents and/or create unacceptable 
traffic movements to the detriment of highway safety. 

3 Notwithstanding any indication of materials that may have been given in 
the application or in the absence of such information, no development 
shall commence on site until samples / details including manufacturers 
details of all the materials to be used for external facing and roofing for 
the development hereby approved have been submitted to, and approved 
in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.  The development works shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved details.



Reason - To ensure that the materials used in the construction of the 
approved development harmonise with the surroundings. It is considered 
necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as such details 
need to be taken into account in the construction of the development and 
thus go to the heart of the planning permission.

4 The development hereby approved shall not be first brought into use until 
a fully detailed landscape and planting scheme for the site has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and in 
accordance with the recommendations of the appropriate British 
Standards or other recognised codes of good practice.  These works shall 
be carried out in the first planting season after practical completion or 
first occupation of the development, whichever is earlier, unless 
otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Any trees or plants which, within a period of 5 years after planting, are 
removed, die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be 
replaced as soon as is reasonably practicable with others of species, size 
and number as originally approved unless otherwise first agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason - In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality and to 
enable proper consideration to be given to the impact of the proposed 
development on existing trees.

5 The development hereby approved shall not be used outside the hours of:
08:00 to 18:00 Monday to Friday,
08:00 to 13:00 Saturday
At no time on Sunday, Public or Bank holidays.
Reason - To ensure that the amenities of the area and adjacent property 
are not detrimentally affected by the use of the site outside reasonable 
working times.

6 No deliveries shall be received or dispatches made from the site outside 
the hours of:
08:00 to 18:00 Monday to Friday
08:00 to 13:00 Saturday
At no time on Sunday, Public or Bank Holidays. 
Reason - To ensure that the amenities of the area and adjacent property 
are not detrimentally affected by the use of the site outside reasonable 
working times.

7 No external lighting/ floodlighting shall be installed on the site until such 
details have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The lighting shall be installed, operated, and 
maintained in accordance with the approved details.
Reason - To protect the rural character of the area and in the interests of 
the amenity of the occupants of neighbouring properties.



Note: When submitting details for approval, it is requested that a report 
from a competent Lighting Professional is provided, confirming that the 
external lighting installation meets the Obtrusive Light Limitations for 
Exterior Lighting Installations for Environmental Zone (to be specified for 
the circumstances) as set out in the "Guidance Notes for the Reduction of 
Obtrusive Light GN01:2011" issued by the Institute of Lighting 
Professionals.

8 No air handling equipment, compressor or generator shall be used at the 
premises unless otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.
Reason - To ensure that the amenities of the area are not detrimentally 
affected by the use outside reasonable working hours.

9 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order, 2015 (or any Order 
revoking, re-enacting or modifying that Order) no CCTV otherwise 
permitted under Class F of Part 2 shall be installed on the site without the 
prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.  
Reason - In the interests of the amenity of the occupants of neighbouring 
properties.

10 No development shall commence on site until details of a scheme for 
surface water drainage has been submitted to, and approved in writing 
by, the Local Planning Authority.  Such details should include provision for 
all surface water drainage from parking areas and areas of hardstanding 
to prevent surface water from discharging onto the highway and should 
be based on site investigation and percolation tests.  The development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details before any 
part of the development is first occupied and shall be retained thereafter.
Reason - To ensure adequate provision for drainage. It is considered 
necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as such details 
need to be taken into account in the construction of the development and 
thus go to the heart of the planning permission.

11 No development shall start on site until a construction method statement 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority, 
which shall include:

 A programme of and phasing of construction work; 
 The provision of long term facilities for contractor parking;
 The arrangements for deliveries associated with all construction 

works;
 Access and egress for plant and machinery;
 Protection of pedestrian routes during construction;
 Location of temporary site buildings, compounds, construction 

material, and plant storage areas;
 Provision for storage, collection, and disposal of rubbish from the 

development during construction period; and



 Re-use of on site material and spoil arising from any site clearance 
or demolition work.

Construction work shall only take place in accordance with the approved 
method statement.
Reason - In order that the Planning Authority can properly consider the 
effect of the works on the amenity of the locality.

12 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans and particulars:

Application form
Design access and planning statement
1065LP - location plan
005 Rev P3 - Proposed site plan
010 Rev P3 - proposed block and floor plans
020 Rev. P4 - proposed elevations

Reason - To ensure provision of a satisfactory development

Informative Notes to Applicant:

1 In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the NPPF East 
Hampshire District Council (EHDC) takes a positive and proactive 
approach and works with applicants/agents on development proposals in 
a manner focused on solutions by:

 offering a pre-application advice service,

 updating applications/agents of any issues that may arise in the 
processing of their application and where possible suggesting 
solutions.

In this instance the applicant was provided with pre-application advice 
and was updated of issues after the initial site visit.

CASE OFFICER: Jon Holmes 01730 234243
———————————————————————————————————————



SECTION 1   Item 1,  Wield Yard, Yew Tree Lane, Wield, SO24 9AJ

 

Proposed site plan



SECTION 1  Item 1,  Wield Yard, Yew Tree Lane, Wield, SO24 9AJ

Proposed north-west elevation

Proposed south-east elevation

Proposed south-west elevation

Proposed north-east elevation







Item No.: 02

The information, recommendations, and advice contained in this report are correct as at 
the date of preparation, which is more than one week in advance of the Committee 
meeting. Because of the time constraints some reports may have been prepared in 
advance of the final date given for consultee responses or neighbour comments.  Any 
changes or necessary updates to the report will be made orally at the Committee meeting.

PROPOSAL Retention of boundary wall (as amended by plans received 12.06.17 
omitting proposed vehicular gates)

LOCATION: 41 Bulls Copse Lane, Horndean, Waterlooville, PO8 9RA
REFERENCE : 56832/001 PARISH:Horndean
APPLICANT: Mr Spalding
CONSULTATION EXPIRY : 13 March 2017
APPLICATION EXPIRY : 05 April 2017
COUNCILLOR: Cllr D Evans
SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION

This site is referred to Committee at the request of Councillor D Evans so that the impact 
on the character of the area can be fully assessed.

Site and Development

41 Bulls Copse Lane is a chalet style bungalow situated on the western side of the road in 
a residential area. The property benefits from a driveway to the side, and a garden which 
goes around the front, side and rear of the property. The land slopes to the rear. The site 
lies in the settlement policy boundary for Horndean.

Permission is sought for the retention of a boundary wall with infill fencing on the front 
boundary of the property. There are a number of brick piers, a brick plinth along the bottom 
and stained brown fence panels inbetween with a curved top. The topography of the street 
is uneven, and the height of the wall ranges from 184 cm to 200 cm in height.

According to the applicant, the previous wall dated from the 1970s, and Google Street 
View images confirm it to have been a wall of concrete block construction with decorative 
infill blocks inbetween the main piers. The works to replacing the wall were undertaken 
between November 2013 and January 2014. The applicant has advised that the previous 
wall was 1.8-1.9 metres in height.

Amended plans were received on the 12th June omitting the proposed vehicular entrance 
gates.

Relevant Planning History

None relevant.



Development Plan Policies and Proposals

East Hampshire District Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy (2014)

CP2 - Spatial Strategy
CP29 - Design
CP27 - Pollution
CP31 - Transport

Planning Policy Constraints and Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

In this instance the following sections of the NPPF are considered to be particularly 
relevant to the consideration of the development;

Core planning principles: Paragraph 17: Good amenity for all.

Section 7 – Requiring good design.

Village Design Statement - Horndean Parish Village Design Statement  - non statutory 
planning guidance that has been the subject of public consultation and therefore is a 
material planning consideration.

Consultations and Town/Parish Council comments

Hampshire County Highways - The Highway Authority are satisfied that the retention of the 
boundary wall would have no direct or indirect impact upon the operation or safety of the 
local highway network and would therefore recommend: No objection (no conditions)

Horndean Parish Council - Objection:- No issues raised by highways despite this being a 
retrospective application. It is contrary to local and national planning policy for front 
boundary fences to be higher than 1m and visually does not meet character of village.

Representations
 
3 representations have been received in support of the application. Two representations 
state that they consider the current wall to be an improvement to the previous one.

Determining Issues

1. Principle of development
2. Impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties
3. Impact on the character of the area 
4. Highway implications

Planning Considerations 

1. Principle of development

Policy CP1 of the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) applies to development within the Settlement 
Policy Boundary (SPB) where there is a presumption in favour of development. 



Policy CP2 identifies a sustainable hierarchy of SPB and sets out five levels of sustainable 
settlements. The application site falls within one of the identified SPB, and given that the 
proposal is for domestic works within the curtilage of an existing residential property, the 
principle of the development is acceptable, subject to all other relevant planning 
considerations and policies which will be discussed below.

2. Impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties

Policy CP27 of the JCS requires that developments would not have an unacceptable 
impact on the amenity of the occupiers of neighbouring properties through loss of privacy 
or excessive overshadowing.  Policy CP29 criterion (d) requires development to be 
sympathetic to its setting in terms of scale, height, massing and density, and its 
relationship to adjoining buildings, spaces around buildings and landscape features. 
Paragraph 17 of the NPPF amongst other core principles, requires development to provide 
a good level of amenity for all new and existing occupants of land and buildings.

The wall and fencing is of a similar height to the previous wall. The siting of the wall is to 
the front boundary of the property and would be sufficiently distanced, orientated and 
designed so as not to have an unacceptable effect on the amenities of the neighbouring 
properties, in particular to their outlook, privacy or available light.

3. Impact on the character of the area and highway implications

Policy CP29 of the JCS seeks to ensure that development proposals are of exemplary 
standards of design and architecture, with a high quality external appearance that respect 
the area's particular characteristics. It requires that developments are sympathetic to their 
setting in terms of scale, height and massing, and their relationship to adjoining buildings, 
spaces around buildings, and that developments should make a positive contribution to the 
overall appearance of the area.  Saved Policy HE2 of the Local Plan reiterates CP29 as 
set out above. 

It is a general design principle that boundary treatment to the front of a dwelling be 
proportionate in scale to the dwelling it serves. Furthermore, low boundary treatments and 
soft landscaping contribute to the character of an area and usually afford open views to the 
frontages of the properties.

The applicant wants to retain the taller fencing to the front of his property for privacy 
reasons, and has stated that his main private amenity space (garden) is to the side of his 
property, hence wanting the front to be more enclosed.

The boundary treatment proposed for retention is of a proportionate size in relation to the 
dwelling it serves. The wall and fencing is taller than the wall and trellis serving 39a Bulls 
Copse and taller than the hedging which serves 43 Bulls Copse. Although there is disparity 
here, the streetscene itself has a variety of different heights of boundary treatments, and a 
range of hedges, walls and fences. The closeboard fencing inserts break up the bulk of the 
wall thereby softening the appearance within the streetscene to a degree. Although it 
would be better if the height of the wall/fencing were reduced, or made to be more open in 
appearance, it is considered to be on balance acceptable.

The scale and bulk of the wall and fencing is considered to be in keeping with the existing 
property and surrounding buildings and would not appear overly dominant in the 
streetscene or wider area. 



4. Highway Implications

The driveway entrance remains open without any gates, and the spacing between the 
entrance pillars is fairly generous. The Highway Authority have commented that they are 
satisfied that the retention of the boundary wall would have no direct or indirect impact 
upon the operation or safety of the local highway network.

Response to Parish/Town Council Comments

The Parish Council have objected on the grounds that the proposal is 'contrary to local and 
national policy for front boundary fences to be higher than 1m and visually does not meet 
the character of the village'. The Parish Council have also commented that Hampshire 
County Highways have raised no objection despite the application being retrospective. 

The General Permitted Development Order allows fences to be built adjacent a highway 
without formal planning permission up to 1 metre in height. This does not prevent fences 
above 1 metre being built, but rather each case must be assessed under its own merits 
during the planning application process against the relevant policies of the East Hampshire 
District Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy and East Hampshire District Local Plan: Second 
Review.

Hampshire County Highways raise objections on the principle of development and the 
highway impact. Each application is assessed with no bias as to whether the works have 
already been carried out or not.

Conclusion

The proposal is considered to be acceptable as it would be in scale and character with the 
dwelling, would not detract from the character and appearance of the area, would not have 
an unacceptable impact on the amenities of neighbouring properties and would not have 
an adverse effect on the safety and function of the highway network. As such, the proposal 
is in compliance with the relevant policies of the East Hampshire District Local Plan: Joint 
Core Strategy and East Hampshire District Local Plan: Second Review.

RECOMMENDATION

 PERMISSION subject to the following conditions:

1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried retained in 
accordance with the following approved plans and particulars:

Application form
Location plan
Block plan
Amended - Elevation plan (rec. 12.06.17)
Amended - Floor plan (rec.12.06.17)
Photographs

Reason - To ensure provision of a satisfactory development



Informative Notes to Applicant:

1 In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the NPPF East 
Hampshire District Council (EHDC) takes a positive and proactive 
approach and works with applicants/agents on development proposals in 
a manner focused on solutions by:

 offering a pre-application advice service,

 updating applications/agents of any issues that may arise in the 
processing of their application and where possible suggesting 
solutions.

In this instance the applicant was updated of any issues after the initial 
site visit.

CASE OFFICER: Rosie Virgo 01730 234245 Mon,Tues,Thu
———————————————————————————————————————



SECTION 1   Item  2,   41 Bulls Copse Lane, Horndean, PO8 9RA

Proposed wall



SECTION 1   Item 2, 41 Bulls Copse Lane, Horndean, PO8 9RA

Elevation of wall 

 
Layout plan





PART 2

SOUTH DOWNS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY

PLANNING COMMITTEE
REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING 

Applications to be determined by the council on behalf 
of the South Downs National Park Authority

PS.486/2017
22 June 2017

SECTION 1 – SCHEDULE OF APPLICATION RECOMMENDATIONS 

Report to Planning Committee
Date 22 June 2017
By Director of Planning
Local Authority East Hampshire District Council
Application
Number

SDNP/17/00383/FUL

Applicant PREMIER INN HOTELS LIMITED
Application Two storey annexe to hotel, car parking and air conditioning 

compound (amended plans and details received on 
16/05/2017).

Address Great Oak (Premier Inn), Winchester Road, Petersfield, 
GU32 3BU

Recommendation: That the application be approved for the reasons and 
subject to the conditions set out in paragraph 10 of this report.

Executive Summary

This application has been referred to the Planning Committee for consideration and 
determination as the proposal represents a departure from the Petersfield 
Neighbourhood Development Plan. 



The proposal seeks permission for an extension to the hotel on this site, a C1 use, in 
an area of land allocated in the Petersfield Neighbourhood Plan as employment land (B 
Class Uses). The proposal occupies the south-west corner of the larger employment 
land allocation (B1 - Land North of Buckmore Farm).  

1 Site Description

1.1 The site to which this application relates is located with the Settlement Policy Boundary 
(SPB) of Petersfield, the South Downs National Park and lies within the Petersfield 
Neighbourhood Plan Area. The site relates to the Petersfield Premier Inn, which is 
located within a motorist's service area at the junction of the A3 and Winchester Road. 

1.2 The hotel and restaurant site extends to 0.49 hectares and is occupied by a two storey 
50-bed hotel building, restaurant (Great Oak Table) and car park. To the north-east of 
the building lies Buckmore Studios and Buckmore Farm, which are listed buildings and 
the land immediately to the east of the site and south of Buckmore Farm, is allocated 
for employment use with an extant outline planning permission 
(ref SDNP/13/00695/OUT).

1.3 The hotel building is not listed and the site is not located within a conservation area. 
The site is located in Flood Zone 1, an area of low flood risk, and there is an Oak tree 
to the rear (north) of the site, which is subject to a Tree Preservation Order (TPO). 
Lastly, the land slopes gently upwards from south to north across the site.

1.4 The land is allocated in the Petersfield Neighbourhood Plan for New Business / 
Employment Provision. This post dates and takes precedence over the land allocation 
as set out within the Local Plan: Second Review 2006, which also allocated the land for 
employment use.

2 Proposal

2.1 Two storey annexe to hotel, car parking, air conditioning compound and (additional 
information and amended plans received on 16/05/2017 and 22/05/2017). 

2.2 The additional information relates to an updated and revised Transport Statement and 
the amended plans relate to a revised Site / Landscape Plan and Lighting Plan. 

2.3 The proposal also details a new vehicular access in the north-east corner of the site to 
serve the neighbouring employment units (Buckmore Studios). 

Building dimensions
Height = 9.8m
Depth = 14.2m
Width = 32m

Existing number of bedrooms = 50
Number of additional bedrooms = 31
Total number of bedrooms = 81



Number of additional car parking spaces = 25
Total number of car parking spaces = 106

2.4 The two storey additional building is sought to the north of the existing building, 
adjacent and parallel to the A3 slip road. The new parking area extends from the 
existing parking area in the north-east corner of the site. Both the proposed building 
and additional parking area have been kept away from the protected Oak tree, on the 
northern site boundary.

2.5 The proposal also details the installation of an air conditioning compound of 
approximately 4x4 square metre, fenced area shown adjacent to the side (west) 
boundary line and south-west corner of the proposed new building.    

3 Relevant Planning History

3.1 23936/029 - 50 Bedroomed travel inn restaurant / public house with associated 
parking, access and landscaping. Permission, 04/01/2006. 

Neighbouring building - Buckmore Studios

3.2 SDNP/53228 - Extension and conversion of barn to offices and ancillary 
accommodation. Approved - 09/05/2011.

Neighbouring site - land south of Buckmore Farm

3.3 SDNP/13/00695/OUT - Outline application - Development of a business park 
comprising the erection of buildings with a maximum floor space of 5500 square 
metres for office, research and development, light industrial, or storage and distribution 
use (including trade counter) (Use Classes B1(a), B1(b), B1(c), and B8). Engineering 
operations to alter site levels, including formation of new access to Winchester Road 
and internal site access road, car parking and landscaping - (Revised plans and 
reduction to total floor space proposed). Approved - 29/11/2013.
  

3.4 SDNP/16/05330/REM - Reserved matters pursuant to outline permission 
SDNP/13/00695/OUT for development of a business park (Appearance, landscaping, 
layout and scale to be considered). Decision pending - June 2017. 

4 Consultations 

EH - Landscape Officer - No objection

EH - Arboricultural Officer - No objection. The works to protect this tree must be 
carried out in accordance with the Tree Protection Plan, referenced 16053-2VB. 

HCC - Ecology Group - The amended lighting plan (Kingfisher, April 2017) shows that 
lighting levels have been significantly reduced within the most sensitive areas 
(especially adjacent to the retained vegetation at the eastern boundary) and would 
result in only very low lux levels. These are likely to be acceptable to Natural England 
in respect to licensing.



No objection, subject to condition (ecological mitigation, compensation and 
enhancement measures).

HCC Highways - Strategic Applications – No objection, subject to condition (parking 
provision)

EH - Conservation Section - Objection, pending the submission of an improved 
landscaping scheme including further details of size and species proposed in order to 
mitigate the impact of the proposals on the setting of the neighbouring listed buildings. 

(Officer note: amended plans have been received that strengthen the boundary 
planting between the proposed enlarged car park and the neighbouring listed buildings 
(Buckmore Farm Barn / Buckmore Studios and Buckmore Farm). 

The Conservation Officer has reviewed the revised landscape plan and raised no 
objection.

Parish Council Consultee - No Objection to the two storey annexe hotel and air 
conditioning compound, but members are concerned that there appears to be no detail 
as to why a section of hedgerow is to be removed in the car park which would allow 
access to the neighbouring property and leading to Beckham Lane. Members would 
not like to see this used as a through route to Beckham Lane.

5 Representations

Two letters of representation have been received from the owner / occupiers of the 
adjacent building (Buckmore Studios and Buckmore Farm), with the following 
comments and observations:

 new access point would reduce traffic onto Beckham Lane and be desirable;
 in favour of new access point from Premier Inn site to Buckmore Studios, if this 

means a major reduction in staff, delivery and trade traffic currently using 
Beckham Lane;

 concerns about the overuse / misuse / abuse of the access outside of office 
hours;

 access should not become an unrestricted short cur for vehicles or pedestrians;
 Buckmore Studios has excellent access to the railway station and bus routes;
 currently around 35 users of the studios, of which about a quarter use public 

transport or car share; and
 around 25 vehicles on site, varies depending on workloads and visitors – offices 

not generally used at weekends. 

One further letter has been received from The Petersfield Society, with the following 
comments and observations:

 no objection, subject to the following comments, to this application for an 
annexe located within land allocated for business use by The Petersfield 
Neighbourhood Plan;



 the orientation of the annexe along the slip road off the A3 will help to minimise 
the impact on the wider landscape and forms an acceptable gap to the listed 
Buckmore Farm buildings;

 design of the annexe is in effect a duplicate copy of the existing Great Oak hotel 
so acceptable although of no particular architectural merit;

 will be seen along a major gateway to Petersfield so appropriate plant screening 
is a necessity in order to break up the volume visually;

 planning condition to implement surrounding hedge row planting as well as new 
tree planting to at least replace those to be removed. A good landscape design 
will minimise the visual impact on the greater landscape of this development;

 recognised that the existing Great Oak Hotel is more frequently being fully 
booked confirming that additional hotel space is needed locally; and,

 a planning condition is required to ensure that added hard area surfaces are 
completed with a permeable finish to limit the flooding risk within Petersfield 
Town.

6 Planning Policy Context

6.1 Applications must be determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. The statutory development plan in this area 
is the East Hampshire District Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy, 2014, the Petersfield 
Neighbourhood Development Plan, 2016 and the East Hampshire District Local Plan: 
Second Review, 2006.

The relevant policies to this application are set out in section 7, below.

National Park Purposes
The two statutory purposes of the SDNP designation are:

 To conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural heritage,  
 To promote opportunities for the public understanding and enjoyment of the 

special qualities of their areas.

6.2 If there is a conflict between these two purposes, conservation takes precedence. 
There is also a duty to foster the economic and social well being of the local community 
in pursuit of these purposes.  

7 Planning Policy 

7.1 Relevant Government Planning Policy and Guidance
Government policy relating to National Parks is set out in English National Parks and 
the Broads: UK Government Vision and Circular 2010 and The National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF) which was issued and came into effect on 27 March 2012. 
The Circular and NPPF confirm that National Parks have the highest status of 
protection and the NPPF states at paragraph 115 that great weight should be given to 
conserving landscape and scenic beauty in the national parks and that the 
conservation of wildlife and cultural heritage are important considerations and should 
also be given great weight in National Parks. 



7.2  National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
The following National Planning Policy Framework documents have been considered in 
the assessment of this application: 

 NPPF - Achieving sustainable development 
 NPPF - Building a strong, competitive economy
 NPPF - Ensuring the vitality of town centres
 NPPF - Requiring good design
 NPPF - Promoting healthy communities
 NPPF - Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
 NPPF - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
 NPPF - Conserving and enhancing the historic environment
 NPPF - Facilitating the sustainable use of minerals

The development plan policies listed below have been assessed for their compliance 
with the NPPF and are considered to be complaint with the NPPF.

7.3 The following policies of the East Hampshire District Local Plan: Joint Core 
Strategy  2016 are relevant to this application:

• CP1 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
• CP2 - Spatial Strategy
• CP3 - New employment provision
• CP9 - Tourism
• CP20 - Landscape
• CP21 - Biodiversity
• CP24 - Sustainable Construction
• CP25 - Flood Risk
• CP27 - Pollution
• CP29 - Design
• CP30 - Historic Environment
• CP31 - Transport

7.4 The following policies of the East Hampshire District Local Plan: 2nd Revision 2006
 are relevant to this application:

• IB1 - Industrial And Business Land Allocations
• IB4 - Retention Of Industrial Or Business
• TM1 - Tourism Development
• TM2 - Visitor Accommodation within Settlement Policy Boundaries
• TM4 - Hotel Allocations
• HE12 - Development Affecting the Setting of a Listed Building
       C6 - Tree Protection

7.5 The following policies of the Petersfield Neighbourhood Development Plan 2016 are 
relevant to this application: 

 BEP1 - The character, setting and quality of the town's built environment



 BEP6 - The Settlement Boundary
 BP1 - Allocate sites specifically for employment use
 TP1 - Additional hotel accommodation
 Allocated sites - B1 Employment Land north of Buckmore Farm

7.6 Partnership Management Plan
The South Downs Partnership Management Plan (SDPMP) was adopted on 3 
December 2013. It sets out a Vision and long term Outcomes for the National Park, as 
well as 5 year Policies and a continually updated Delivery Framework. The SDPMP is 
a material consideration in planning applications and has some weight pending 
adoption of the SDNP Local Plan. 

The following Policies and Outcomes are of particular relevance to this case:

General Policy 1
Conserve and enhance the natural beauty and special qualities of the landscape and 
its setting, in ways that allow it to continue to evolve and become more resilient to the 
impacts of climate change and other pressures.

General Policy 3
Protect and enhance tranquillity and dark night skies 

General Policy 5
Conserve and enhance populations of priority species in and around the National Park, 
delivering targeted action where required.

General Policy 9
The significance of the historic environment is protected from harm, new discoveries 
are sought and opportunities to reveal its significance are exploited.  

7.7   The South Downs Local Plan: Preferred Options was approved for consultation by the 
National Park Authority on 16th July 2015 to go out for public consultation under 
Regulation 18 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) 
Regulations 2012.  The consultation period ran from 2nd September to 28th October 
2015.  

The next stage in the plan preparation will be the publication and then submission of 
the Local Plan for independent examination. Until this time, the Preferred Options Local 
Plan is a material consideration in the assessment of this application, in accordance 
with paragraph 216 of the National Planning Policy Framework, which confirms that 
weight can be given to policies in emerging plans following publications. Based on the 
early stage of preparation the policies within the Preferred Options Local Plan are 
currently afforded limited weight and are not relied upon in the consideration of this 
application.   

The following policies are considered to be of relevance to this application:



 SD1: Sustainable Development in the South Downs National Park
 SD5: Landscape Character
 SD6: Design
 SD18: Transport and accessibility

8 Planning Assessment

Principle of development

8.1 The application site lies within a Settlement Policy Boundary (SPB), as indicated by the 
adopted Petersfield Neighbourhood Development Plan (PNDP) and the East 
Hampshire District Local Plan: Second Review (as saved), where there is a 
presumption in favour of sustainable development. Policy CP2 of the Local Plan: Joint 
Core Strategy (JCS) identifies a sustainable hierarchy of SPBs and sets out five levels 
of sustainable settlement. The application site falls within one of the identified SPB 
(Petersfield), which is as a market town, top in the hierarchy for locations within the 
South Downs National Park. 

8.2 In addition, Policy CP3 of the JCS outlines employment provision and distribution in the 
District in the Plan period (2028) and allocates about 3ha of land of employment land in 
Petersfield. Policy CP9 (Tourism) of the JCS and Policy TP1 of the PNDP are 
supportive of additional hotel accommodation in principle. 

Employment Land Use / Economic development

8.3 There is an established hotel and restaurant on part of the site, as allocated in the 
Local Plan: Second Review, with the remainder of the land, to the north of the Premier 
Inn site and west of Buckmore Studios, being allocated as employment land within the 
PNDP and as industrial and business allocations within the Local Plan: Second Review 
(Policy IB1). The PNDP is the most up-to-date specific land development allocation for 
the site, post dating the Local Plan: Second Review and, therefore, overrides the 
allocation policies as outlined within this saved Local Plan. 

8.4 The site, referenced B1 - Employment land north of Buckmore Farm within the PNDP, 
identifies the application site, together with a much larger area of land to the north of 
Buckmore Farm, as employment land. This is supported by Policy BP1 of the PNDP 
that states planning permission will be granted for appropriate new employment 
development (on the allocated sites), provided the development complies with the 
design principles (Section 12) and meet the requirements of other relevant policies of 
the PNDP and the Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy. The Policy also states that 
applications for alternative uses on the allocated sites will not normally be approved 
except for the identified town centre opportunity sites. The site is not identified as a 
town centre site.

  



8.5 The PNDP does not define employment development, however, the supporting text 
refers to conformity with the NPPF and Policies CP2 (Spatial Strategy) and CP3 (New 
Employment Provision) of the JCS. Paragraph 5.8 of the JCS, in regards to 
Sustainable Economic Development, outlines the relevant supporting policies of the 
Local Plan give some emphasis to the provision of land for traditional employment uses 
(Class B Uses). However, the Plan also advises that other uses, such as care facilities, 
hotels and retail are increasingly making a positive contribution to job creation and 
these will be encouraged with other policies of the Local Plan. 

8.6 The NPPF defines Economic Development as development within the B Use Classes, 
public and community uses and main town centre uses (excluding housing 
development). Main town centre uses are then defined by the NPPF, outlining a series 
of uses, one of which includes tourism development and specifically hotels. The 
proposal does not fall within a defined Class B Use and is, therefore, not considered to 
be an employment land use and this would be a departure from the development plan. 
However, the proposal would result in a notable expansion of the existing hotel 
provision on the site with a further 30 bedrooms and 10 additional employees. 

8.7 The development is also considered to have a knock on benefit to local economy and 
general tourism trade.  As such, the proposal is considered to be beneficial to the local 
and wider economy in supporting sustainable economic development in accordance 
with the fundamental aims of the NPPF and the development plan. 

Need

8.8 The applicant has provided information in support of the proposal outlining the need for 
the 30 bedroom addition to the 50 bedroom hotel on the site. The information 
demonstrates that the hotel has an annual occupancy rate of just over 90% (90.9%) 
(Monday - Thursday), with a higher figure of all but 92% (91.8%) on Saturdays. These 
are high occupancy rates and also indicates that for much of the weekdays, use of the 
hotel is full and business is being turned away or redirected. This high occupancy rate, 
together with the anticipated growth in demand in the sector demonstrates that there is 
a need for increased capacity at the site.

8.9 This conclusion is also backed by the South Downs National Park Visitor 
Accommodation Review, 2014 that outlines the visitor accommodation sector is 
performing well but there are shortages of all types of accommodation during the peak 
summer months. The proposal would provide additional provision on the site. However, 
30 additional bedrooms is not considered such an expansion of the existing hotel that it 
would undermine those existing places of tourist / visitor accommodation in the wider 
area. 

8.10 The hotel facility provides specific motel nature of accommodation that is considered 
different to other visitor accommodation in the area. As such, there is considered to be 
a justified need for the expansion of the hotel that would provide greater levels of visitor 
accommodation within the National Park, whilst not adversely impacting the alternative 
tourist / visitor accommodation in the area. 



Tourism / Economic impacts

8.11 Both Policy CP9 (Tourism) and Policy TP1 (Additional hotel accommodation) are 
supportive of new hotel / holiday accommodation in appropriate locations. The site lies 
within a SPB and within one of the District's Market towns, within the South Downs 
National Park, just off two main roads (A3 / Winchester Road) and within a relatively 
short distance of Petersfield Town Centre (1.2km) and train station (0.8 km). 

8.12 Therefore, the application site is considered to be a suitable location for the expansion 
of the hotel that would provide greater visitor accommodation in the area to the benefit 
of the wider tourism industry and local economy. As such, the proposal is considered to 
comply with Policy CP9 of the Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy, Policy TP1 of the 
Petersfield Neighbourhood Plan and the advice contained within the NPPF. 

 Summary of principles 

8.13 The proposal would result in the loss of part of the land allocated for employment land 
use within the PNPD (land north of Buckmore Farm). However, the site area is 
relatively small in comparison with the remainder of the site allocation, which remains 
unaffected by the proposal. 

Furthermore, the loss of this area must be considered and balanced against those 
other considerations and benefits resulting from the proposal. The proposal would 
provide an employment generation in its own right (10 additional employees), provide 
for demonstrated additional visitor accommodation in the area and support the local 
economy and tourism trade. Therefore, the principle of development is acceptable.    

Impact on the character of the area, site and South Downs National Park

8.13 The application site forms part of an established motorist's service area, comprising a 
filling station, hotel and restaurant and drive-through restaurant. The hotel (Premier 
Inn) and restaurant (Great Oak) building is situated to the north of the wider service 
area, with a two storey building facing south and set back from Winchester Road, with 
parking to the side (east) and rear (north) of the building. 

8.14 The proposal would see the expansion of the hotel, with the erection of a two storey 
detached building on the site together with an enlarged parking area and areas of soft 
landscaping. The building would be positioned adjacent to the side (west) boundary, 
following the line of the A3 slip road and would extend to an overall height of 9.8 
metres, depth of 14.2 metres and width of 32 metres. It has a design, form and 
appearance that is consistent with the existing hotel building, with a pitched plain tiled 
roof and brick and timber clad external elevations. 

8.15 The proposal also details a small access road to the neighbouring building (Buckmore 
Studios) and lane (Beckham Lane). This access has a width of 3 metres and is sought 
to enable vehicle access to the business premises operating at Buckmore Studios. 
(See further discussion in highway section below).



8.16 The land to the north of the site is presently largely flat grassland, with a pocket of 
vegetation in the north-east and a veteran Oak tree, subject of a Tree Preservation 
Order (TPO) on the northern site boundary. 

8.17 The proposal would see the expansion of the site into the neighbouring parcel of land, 
with the removal of a recently planted hedgerow and post and rail fence between the 
two sites. The resultant development would be consistent with the existing built form 
and massing on the site, with new retaining walls to provide a levelled car park and 
building level. The building would be positioned on slightly higher land level than the 
existing building, due to the natural increase in land levels across the site. However, 
this increase in height is not significant and the building would effectively be read as a 
continuation of the existing built form that fronts the A3 slip road (southbound exit). 

8.18 The increase in built form and areas of hardstanding are considered to be appropriate 
to the proposal and, with the building positioned to the rear of the existing and a 
considerable amount of the development would be below the level of the A3, it is not 
considered to have an adverse impact on the character of the area or existing site. Nor 
has an objection been raised by the Council's Landscape Officer.

8.19 Furthermore, the proposal would not be a prominent addition and read against the 
existing context of commercial development in the immediate vicinity, with the large 
veteran Oak tree being retained and substantial soft landscaping proposed. Therefore, 
the proposal is considered to conserve the natural landscape beauty of the South 
Downs National Park, whilst also providing provision for those visiting the park to 
promote opportunities for the understanding and enjoyment of the National Park by the 
public. As such, the proposal is considered to accord with Policies CP20 (Landscape) 
and CP29 (Design) of the Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy and the advice contained 
within the NPPF.

Impact on heritage assets 

8.20 Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
requires planning authorities, when considering whether to grant planning permission 
for development which affects a listed building or its setting, to have special regard to 
the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses.

8.21 The NPPF sets out, in paragraph 17, the 12 core planning principles that local planning 
authorities should consider in making planning decisions. One of these core principles 
relates directly to conserving heritage assets, as follows: 

 Planning should conserve heritage assets in a manner appropriate to their 
significance, so that they can be enjoyed for their contribution to the quality of 
life of this and future generations;

8.22 Policy CP29 of the Joint Core Strategy states that proposals should harmonise with the 
townscape and the general character of the town or village in which it is set and that it 
easily assimilates into the landscape or is well related to a group of buildings.



8.23 Policy CP30 of the Joint Core Strategy states that development proposals must 
conserve and, where possible, enhance the Districts historic environment. This 
includes point c) which seeks to:

 Conserve, enhance, maintain and manage the districts heritage assets and their 
setting including listed buildings, conservation areas, Scheduled Ancient 
Monuments, archaeological sites and Historic Parks and Gardens.

8.24 Saved Policy HE12 of the Local Plan: Second Review states clearly that development 
which harms the setting of a listed building will not be permitted.

8.25 To the north-east of the site lies Buckmore Farm Barn (Buckmore Studios - unit 1) and 
Buckmore Farm, both of which are grade II listed buildings. The Council's Conservation 
Officer has reviewed the proposal and raised initial concerns with regard to the 
proximity of the enlarged area of hardstanding and limited screening between the 
enlarged car park and Buckmore Farm Barn. No concerns were raised with regards the 
potential impact of the additional building on the setting of either Buckmore Farm Barn 
or Buckmore Farm. 

8.26 Since the original concerns were raised a revised Site Plan has been received, this 
details a revised parking layout and increased boundary screening between the 
proposed enlarged car park in the north-west corner of the site and the neighbouring 
listed building. This degree of boundary screening is considered to have addressed 
those previous concerns and the Conservation Officer has confirmed that the proposal 
is not considered to harm the setting of either neighbouring listed building. As such, the 
proposal accords with Policy CP30 of the Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy, Policy HE12 
of the Local Plan: Second Review, the advice contained within the NPPF and Section 
66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

Highway and parking considerations

8.27 The site comprises a 50 bedroom hotel with restaurant and associated car park with 81 
spaces. This application seeks a further 31 bedrooms proposed and 25 car parking 
spaces. This would result in an 81 bedroom hotel with an associated car park with 106 
spaces, for both the hotel and existing restaurant. The restaurant use and size remains 
unchanged.

8.28 The site is presently accessed from within Petersfield motorist's service area, with 
vehicle access gained from the Winchester Road in the east bound direction only and 
egress from the site and service area is onto the A3 exit slip road towards the 
Winchester Road / A3 junction. 

Parking

8.29 The accompanying Transport Statement anticipates a peak accumulation of 96 cars 
being at the site as a result of the proposal, which represents 90% of the proposed on 
site parking capacity. This demonstrates that for the hotel use, even when near 
capacity there remains space within the car park. 



8.30 The amended parking layout details a small reduction in overall parking numbers, 
which is below the level of the adopted Parking Standards. The Parking Standards 
require one parking space per bedroom. The proposal details an additional 31 
bedrooms and 25 car parking spaces. Despite the shortfall of 6 spaces, there is 
considered to be existing spare capacity, particularly as it is unlikely that the all the 
rooms would be fully occupied at all times.  Therefore, there is considered to be 
sufficient on-site parking capacity in this instance. 

Highway safety / movements

8.31 In terms of highway movements, it is anticipated that the proposal would generate an 
additional 9 two-way vehicle movements during the morning peak hour (08:00-09:00), 
in the worst case scenario. In a typical day the extension would generate a total of 77 
additional two-way vehicle movements. This is in addition to the existing two-way 
vehicle movements and a further potential 44 two-way movements as a result of the 
new vehicle access point to Buckmore Studios. 

8.32 Therefore, the total additional vehicle movements are anticipated to be 111 additional 
two-way movements to and from the site. This is a notable increase in movements. 
However, the access and egress arrangements from the site are good and designed to 
deal with a significant volume of vehicle movements. Furthermore, there are no records 
of accidents in the past 5 years from the exit point onto the slip road and the proposal 
is likely to result in a reduction in vehicle movements using Beckham Lane, a private 
lane that runs past a playing field, though remaining some vehicles access Buckmore 
Studios along Beckham Lane. No objection has been received from the Local Highway 
Authority.

8.33 Therefore, subject to condition ensuring the parking is available prior to the use of the 
building and a further condition requiring the details and the installation of a form of 
controlled barrier from the site onto Beckham Lane, in order to restrict access to 
Buckmore Studios only and not to create a general through route, the proposal is 
considered to be acceptable in that adequate on site parking is to be provided and the 
proposal is not considered to result in any unacceptable impact on highway safety or 
capacity. This application, therefore, complies with Policy CP31 of the Local Plan: Joint 
Core Strategy, together with the advice contained within the NPPF. 

Impact on neighbouring amenity

8.34 The site is situated away from a number of residential properties, with the nearest 
neighbouring residential property being that of Buckmore Farm some 100 metres from 
the proposed building. Buckmore Studios, in a commercial use, is situated some 10 
metres from the site and 55 metres from the proposed building.  

8.35 The proposed building is positioned a significant distance away from the occupants of 
the neighbouring and surrounding buildings and, therefore, it is not considered to result 
in an unacceptable loss of light or privacy to the occupants of the neighbouring and 
surrounding buildings. 



8.36 Whilst the proposal would result in further vehicle movements to and from the site, in 
the context of a well used motorists service area, the additional vehicle movements is 
not considered to result in a material increase in the present levels of noise and 
disturbance to the occupants of the neighbouring and surrounding properties. 
Furthermore, the proposal is likely to reduce the present levels of vehicle movements 
along Beckham Lane and potential reduction in noise and disturbance to those 
residents in this area. 

8.37 The development, for the aforementioned reasons, is not considered to have an 
unacceptable impact on the amenities enjoyed by the occupants of the neighbouring 
and surrounding properties, in terms of privacy, access to sunlight and daylight and 
noise and disturbance. This application, therefore, accords with Policy CP27 of the 
Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy and the advice contained within the NPPF.  

Ecology

8.38 The application is accompanied by an Ecological Appraisal that outlines the site's 
ecological features. The site comprises the hotel and restaurant, car parking, bare 
ground, grassland, scrub and hedgerow habitats to the north. There are also some 
trees present on the site, including a mature Oak tree. 

8.39 The submitted surveys outline the presence of hazel dormice within the site, with two 
nests recorded on the western boundary. Dormice are protected under both UK and 
EU law and a subsequent licence would be required from Natural England, should 
permission be granted.

8.40 The County's Ecologist initial review of the proposal raised concerns that the additional 
external illumination within the enlarged car park would harm the nocturnal dormice in 
existence on the site. No concerns were raised in regards to protected species of flora 
or fauna of the site.  

8.41 In order to address these concerns, the applicant has submitted an amended plan 
detailing revised lighting levels within the enlarged car park, specifically those areas in 
close proximity to the hedgerow. This revised plan has been considered by the County 
Ecologist, whereby the revised and reduced levels of illumination are considered to be 
acceptable. Therefore, no objection is raised to the proposal on ecology grounds, 
subject to a condition ensuring the development is carried out and maintained in 
accordance with the submitted Ecological Appraisal and lighting details. As such, the 
application is considered to accord with policy CP21 of the Local Plan: Joint Core 
Strategy and the advice contained within the NPPF. 

Impact on trees and vegetation

8.42 The proposal would see an enlargement of the site and development of a parcel of 
land to the north of the building. This area is largely clear of vegetation, with the 
exception of hedgerow along the western boundary with the A3, a mature and 
preserved Oak tree and small pocket of scrub vegetation in the north-east corner of the 
site. 



8.43 The building is set off the side (western) boundary, clear from the hedgerow and it 
would not, therefore, have an adverse impact on the hedgerow. 

8.44 Concerns were originally raised by the Arboricultural Officer in that the enlarged car 
park would have come within the root protection area of the preserved veteran Oak 
tree on the northern site boundary. The applicant has revised the parking layout, 
through the submission of an amended site layout / landscape plan. This has moved 
the area of hardstanding / parking away from the root protection area of the tree and 
addressed the earlier concerns raised. The development is now situated an adequate 
distance from the tree to avoid any unacceptable impact and the parking is largely 
away from the tree to avoid significant post development pressures to extensively 
prune / remove the tree. No objection has been raised by the Council's Arboricultural 
Officer.

8.45 Lastly, the proposal details the removal of some scrub vegetation and young trees in 
the north-east corner of the site. This pocket of vegetation is of limited amenity value 
and not considered worthy of protection. The loss of this area of vegetation, together 
with the removal of the relatively new hedgerow through the middle of the site, would 
be compensated for with the substantial new areas of boundary planting. As such, the 
proposal is not considered to have an adverse impact on the existing preserved Oak 
tree or landscape quality of the existing site in accordance with Policy CP20 of the 
Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy, Policy C6 of the Local Plan: Second Review and the 
advice contained within the NPPF. 

Dark skies

8.46 The site is not within the dark skies core boundary but is situated on the edge of 
Petersfield. The location is identified as an E1 Environmental Zone, according to the 
Institute of Lighting Professionals (ILP) guidance. This is also confirmed on the 
submitted lighting plan. 

8.47 The proposal details the addition of six lighting columns within the enlarged car park, 
with an average lux level of 15. This is typical of a private car park and, given the 
existing commercial and illuminated nature of the business operations in the immediate 
vicinity, it is not considered to have an adverse impact on the intrinsic dark skies. As 
such, no objections are raised to the proposed external illumination proposed.

Flooding

8.48 The site lies outside Flood Zone 2 (medium risk) and Flood Zone 3 (high risk), being 
located in Flood Zone 1 (low risk). The site area does not exceed 1 hectare (0.67 ha) 
and, therefore, a flood risk assessment is not required. Neither is the site situated 
within an area known to be susceptible to surface water flooding. 

8.49 However, the proposal does detail a substantial enlargement to the car park and, 
therefore, potential for increased levels of surface water runoff. 



In order to ensure the development does not result in significant increased levels of 
surface water discharge from the site, a condition is recommended that surface water 
drainage details be submitted and agreed by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of development. 

8.50 Subject to the aforementioned condition and that the site lies outside a flood risk area, 
it is considered the proposed development would not materially increase the risk of 
flooding in accordance with Policy CP25 of the Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy and the 
advice contained within the NPPF. 

Sustainable construction

8.51 Policy CP24 (Sustainable Construction) sets out a requirement for development of one 
or more dwellings and development resulting in 500 square metres or more of non-
residential floor space to provide at least 10% of the energy demand from 
decentralised and renewable or low carbon energy sources. 

8.52 The proposal would result in the addition of more than 500 square metres of new 
internal floor space (861 square metres). Therefore, the proposal does trigger the 
requirement to provide 10% on-site renewable / low carbon technology. A condition is 
recommended to ensure the proposal accords with the requirements of Policy CP24 of 
the Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy.

Developer Contributions / Community Infrastructure Levy

8.53 There is no developer contributions sought for a proposal of this nature, neither is the 
proposal a land use which is the subject of any charges under the adopted South 
Downs Community Infrastructure Levy. 

9 Conclusion

9.1 The site is within the SPB for Petersfield, although allocated for employment uses in 
the Petersfield Neighbourhood Development Plan. The proposal provides additional 
and justified additional tourist / visitor accommodation, as an extension to an existing 
hotel use within a popular destination of the South Downs National Park and close 
proximity of the market town of Petersfield. The proposal would, therefore, make a 
positive contribution to the local economy and tourism trade, helping to promote the 
Park and wider area in accordance with the statutory duties of the National Park and 
the fundamental objectives of the NPPF, in supporting sustainable development. In this 
instance the benefits of the proposed development are considered to outweigh the loss 
of a small section of the employment land allocation.

9.2 Furthermore, the proposal is not considered to have an adverse impact on the 
character of the area, the setting of the adjacent listed building, distinctive landscape 
character of the National Park or its purposes, not adversely impact the local highway 
network or on site parking provision, nor affect protected species of flora and fauna or 
result in an unacceptable impact on the amenities enjoyed by the occupants of the 
neighbouring and surrounding properties.  



The development, therefore, accords with the national and local policies, relevant to 
this proposal, the statutory purposes of the National Park, the NPPF and the provision 
66 of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas Act) 1990. This application 
is, therefore, recommended for approval, subject to conditions outlined below.

10 Reason for Recommendation and Conditions

It is recommended that the application be approved for the reasons and subject to the 
conditions set out below.

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 
years from the date of this permission.

Reason -  To comply with the provisions of Section 91 (1) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended)./ To comply with Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

2. Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the plans 
listed below under the heading "Plans Referred to in Consideration of this Application".

Reason - For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3. The external materials to be used shall match, as closely as possible, in type, 
colour, and texture those of the existing hotel building unless details of other suitable 
materials are otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason - To ensure that a harmonious visual relationship is achieved between the new 
and the existing developments.

4. No development shall commence on site until plans of the site showing details 
of the existing and proposed ground levels, proposed finished floor levels, levels of any 
paths, drives, garages and parking areas and the proposed completed height of the 
development and any retaining walls have been submitted to, and approved in writing 
by, the Local Planning Authority.  The details shall clearly identify the relationship of the 
proposed ground levels and proposed completed height with adjacent buildings.  The 
development thereafter shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason - To ensure that a satisfactory relationship results between the new 
development and adjacent buildings and public areas.  It is considered necessary for 
this to be a pre-commencement condition as these details relate to the construction of 
the development and thus go to the heart of the planning permission.

5. No development shall commence on site until details of any surface water 
drainage have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority.  



Such details should include provision for all surface water drainage from parking areas 
and areas of hardstanding to prevent surface  water from discharging onto the highway 
and should be based on site investigation and percolation tests.  The development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details before any part of the 
development is first occupied and shall be retained thereafter.

Reason - To ensure adequate provision for drainage and to mitigate flood risk to 
neighbouring land and properties.  It is considered necessary for this to be a pre-
commencement condition as such details need to be taken into account in the 
construction of the development and thus go to the heart of the planning permission.

6. Development shall proceed in accordance with the ecological mitigation, 
compensation and enhancement measures detailed within the Ecological Appraisal 
(Lindsay Carrington Ecological Services Ltd, October 2016)  and lighting plan 
DB28101/JB/E (Kingfisher, April 2017) unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. All ecological mitigation, compensation and enhancement  
measures shall be permanently retained and maintained. 

Reason - To conserve and enhance biodiversity in accordance with the Conservation 
Regulations 2010, Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, NERC Act 2006, NPPF and with 
Policy CP21 of the East Hampshire District Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy.

7. The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until the 
area(s) shown on the approved plan for the parking of vehicles (including garages and 
those areas marked out on the plan as being unallocated) shall have been made 
available, surfaced and marked out. The parking area(s) shall then be permanently 
retained and reserved for that purpose at all times.

Reason - To make provision for off street parking for the purpose of highway safety.

8. All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details and in accordance with the recommendations of the appropriate 
British Standards or other recognised codes of good practice.  These works shall be 
carried out in the first planting season after practical completion or first occupation of 
the development, whichever is earlier, unless otherwise first agreed in writing by the 
Local  Planning Authority.  Any trees or plants which, within a period of 5 years after 
planting, are removed, die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be 
replaced as soon as is reasonably practicable with others of species, size and number 
as originally approved unless a suitable alternative species are otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason - To ensure the provision and establishment of a reasonable standard of 
landscape in accordance with the approved designs.

9. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict accordance with 
the approved Arboricultural Method Statement prepared by Duramen dated 19/05/2017 
and Tree Protection Plan (drawing number 16053-2 Rev. B) received by the Local 
Planning Authority on 22/05/2017.  



Reason - To ensure that the trees on and around the site are adequately protected 
from damage to their health and /or amenity value.

10. Prior to the creation and use of the vehicle access onto Beckham Lane, as 
showed on approved drawing number 604-SW-02, details of an access barrier 
(appearance, scale, design and positioning) and means of ensuring the access is 
controlled to only those users and visitors of Buckmore Studios, shall be submitted to 
and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The agreed details shall be 
implemented in full, prior to the use of the access, and retained in perpetuity. 

Reason - In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the terms of the 
application. 

11. No development shall commence on site until a scheme has been submitted to, 
and agreed in writing by, the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate that the built 
development hereby permitted incorporates measures that provide energy savings of 
no less than 10% above Building Regulations in force at the time the development is to 
be constructed. 

Before any part of the development is first occupied a verification report and 
completion certificate shall be submitted in writing to the Local Planning Authority 
confirming that the built development hereby permitted has been constructed in 
accordance with the approved scheme. 

The developer shall nominate a competent person for the purpose of assessing and 
providing the above required report and certificate to confirm that the completed works 
incorporate such measures as to provide the required energy savings.

The energy saving works set out in the above report shall thereafter be maintained so 
that the required energy saving is sustained at the certified level for the lifetime of the 
development. 

Reason - To ensure that the development incorporates necessary mitigation and 
adaptation measures with regard to climate change.  It is considered necessary for this 
to be a pre-commencement condition as these details relate to the construction of the 
development and thus go to the heart of the planning permission.

11. Crime and Disorder Implications 
11.1 It is considered that the proposal does not raise any crime and disorder implications. 

12. Human Rights Implications 
12.1 This planning application has been considered in light of statute and case law and any 

interference with an individual’s human rights is considered to be proportionate to the 
aims sought to be realised. 



13. Equality Act 2010 
13.1 Due regard has been taken of the South Downs National Park Authority’s equality duty 

as contained within the Equality Act 2010. 

14. Proactive Working 
In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the NPPF, East Hampshire District 
Council (EHDC), on behalf of the South Downs National Park, takes a positive and 
proactive approach and works with applicants/agents on development proposals in a 
manner focused on solutions by:

 offering a pre-application advice service,
 updating applications/agents of any issues that may arise in the processing of their 

application and where possible suggesting solutions

In this instance the applicant submitted pre-application advice and issues were 
identified and resolved during the processing of the application.  

Contact Officer: Matthew Harding 
Tel: 01730 234233
email: matthew.harding@easthants.gov.uk

Appendices Appendix 1 – Plans Referred to in Consideration of this 
Application



Appendix 1 – Plans Referred to in Consideration of this Application

The application has been assessed and recommendation is made on the basis of the 
following plans and documents submitted:

Plan Type Reference Version Date on Plan Status
Plans - 604-SW-02 Landsc

ape 
Plan

16.05.2017 Approved

Plans - D28101/JM/F External 
Illumina
tion

16.05.2017 Approved

Reports - JDF/WHIT/15
/2457/TS01

Transpo
rt 
Statem
ent

16.05.2017 Approved

Reports - 16053 Arboric
ultural 
Report

22.05.2017 Approved

Plans - 16053-2 B 22.05.2017 Approved
Application Form - 
Application form

27.01.2017 Approved

Application Documents - CIL 
form 0 additional questions

27.01.2017 Approved

Application Documents - 
Planning, Heritage, Design 
& Access Statement

27.01.2017 Approved

Application Documents - 
Arboricultural Report

27.01.2017 Approved

Application Documents - 
Noise Impact Statement

27.01.2017 Approved

Application Documents - 
Ecological Appraisal

27.01.2017 Approved

Application Documents - 
Suplementary Landscape 
Information

27.01.2017 Approved

Application Documents - 
Travel plan

27.01.2017 Approved

Application Documents - 
Transport statement

27.01.2017 Approved



Application Documents - 
BRUKL Output Document

27.01.2017 Approved

Application Documents - 
Premierfon Glass

27.01.2017 Approved

Application Documents - 
Bream information

27.01.2017 Approved

OS Extract - Location plan 27.01.2017 Approved
Plans - Site plan as existing 4000/P1 27.01.2017 Approved
Plans - Overall landscape 
Proposals

604-01 27.01.2017 Superseded

Plans - Site plan as 
proposed

4000/P2 F 27.01.2017 Superseded

Plans - lighting plan D28101/PY/B 27.01.2017 Superseded
Plans - Proposed plans 4000/P3 27.01.2017 Approved
Plans - Proposed elevations 4000/P4 27.01.2017 Approved
Application Documents - 
Photo of enclosure

27.01.2017 Submitted

Reasons- For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.



Part 2 item 1, Great Oak, Winchester Road, Petersfield

Proposed site plan



Part 2 item 1, Great Oak, Winchester Road, Petersfield

Existing Premier Inn Proposed Premier Inn annexe

Proposed Premier Inn annexe Existing Premier Inn




	Agenda
	 
	6. Future Items
	7.(i) 30936/007/FUL/JonH - Wield Yard, Yew Tree Lane, Wield, Alresford, SO24 9AJ
	7.(ii) 56832/001/HSE/RV - 41 Bulls Copse Lane, Horndean, Waterlooville, PO8 9RA
	8.(i) SDNP/17/00383/FUL - Great Oak (Premier Inn), Winchester Road, Petersfield, Hampshire, GU32 3BU

